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 Attachment 1 
 

The RFTOP is hereby amended as follows: 
 
1. Under RFTOP Cover Page, Proposal Due, delete “August 5, 2015 at 12 noon Jordan time” and replace 

with “August 19, 2015 at 12:00 pm Jordan time”. 
 
2. The following are questions received from prospective offerors and answers provided: 

 

Question No. 1: 
Given the religious holidays during the proposal preparation period, would USAID consider 
extending the due date by one week?  

 

Response No. 1: 

The proposal deadline has been amended from August 05, 2015 to August 19, 2015 at 12:00 pm 
Jordan Time. 

 

Question No. 2: 

I am writing to ask whether USAID would consider a two week extension, to August 19, for the 
submission of proposals in response to the captioned solicitation.  We are making this request 
because it is now Ramadan, and Eid-al-Fitr will fall on July 18, and as such many counterparts 
and other stakeholders in Jordan will be unavailable until late July.  
 
Response No. 2: 
Please see Response No. 1. 

 

Question No. 3: 

The RFTOP states that the offeror “will be required to submit a full outreach and 
communication plan.” We read this requirement to suggest that the plan will be required 
during start-up versus as a part of the proposal. Please could USAID confirm?  

 

Response No. 3: 

Page 31, Section F.8 (l), states that three months after the start date of the Task Order, the 
Contractor will be required to submit a full outreach and communication plan. 

 

Question No. 4: 

Will USAID please clarify that equivalent experience such as serving as a justice or 
accountability professional in the U.S. can count for part of the 15 years required experience for 
the Chief of Party along with significant field operations in emerging democracies?  
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Response No. 4: 

The term “or their equivalents” on page 61 refers to similar positions as a COP or D/COP.  
Offerors are required to demonstrate how proposed Key Personnel satisfy the minimum 
requirements.  For example, the offeror must demonstrate that the COP has a minimum of 
fifteen years of experience supervising complex, fast-paced, politically-oriented field operations 
in emerging democracies, at least three years of which have been spent in COP or Deputy COP 
(DCOP) positions, or their equivalents.  Experience may have been gained while working in the 
United States. 
 

Question No. 5: 

The RFTOP does not specify required annexes although lists resumes, letters of commitment 
and reference, past performance reports, and organizational chart as presumed annexes. 
Please confirm that offerors can include additional annexes as needed such as:  

 

a. M&E plan  

b. Start-up plan  

c. Chart providing further details of proposed long and short term personnel  

d. Letters of commitment from partners/subcontractors  
 
Response No. 5: 

This is to confirm that the contractor may include additional annexes as needed. 

 

Question No. 6: 
Can USAID please confirm that the results framework and Activity M&E Plan is not part of the 
25 page limitation, and can be included as an Annex.  

 

Response No. 6: 

Yes, the results framework and Activity M&E Plan are not subject to the 25 page limitation and 
they can be submitted as annexes. 

 

Question No. 7: 

We note that offerors are required to submit proposals in word. Certain pages (such as letters 
of commitment) are in PDF format. Can offerors submit these as separate PDF attachments?  
 
Response No. 7: 

The offeror must submit its technical proposal (excluding annexes) in Word but may in addition 
provide its technical proposal (including annexes) in PDF format. 
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Question No. 8: 
Should offerors propose a fee schedule per section B.6?  

 

Response No. 8: 

No, the offeror is not required to propose a fee schedule per Section B.6. 

 

Question No. 9: 
Should offerors include the annual $4m options per section B.4 in their budgets?  

 

Response No. 9: 

USAID wants to clarify that this is not a FAR 52-217-9 options-type Task Order.   Also, please 
note that the $4M options are not annual and shall be included in the budget as a plug-figure as 
set forth in section B.4.  As per M.1 52.217-3 EVALUATION EXCLUSIVE OF OPTIONS (APRIL 1984) 
in the RFTOP, the options will be evaluated separately with the successful offeror during the 
implementation of the program, if exercised.  

 

Question No. 10: 
Does USAID have any plug numbers for any of the activities that the contractor should respect 
and include, e.g., size of grant program, procurement, other?  

 

Response No. 10: 

To clarify, USAID/Jordan is not establishing a sub-grant program under this project.  However, 
subgrants are required to support certain components of this program, as set forth in the 
RFTOP.  The number of grants and dollar amount of grants are to be determined by the offeror 
as long as it meets the minimum targets established in the RFTOP.  Although, there is no plug 
number specified in the RFTOP for grants, USAID envisions this figure to be within the range of 
$300,000 – $500,000 per year.  However, each offeror can propose an appropriate number of 
grants and associated costs based on its technical approach. 

 
Question No. 11: 
Can USAID please confirm that only 3 grants per a year are envisioned under Sub-Result 2.1, 
and can USAID provide a plug figure for these grants? 

 

Response No. 11: 

Please see Response No. 10. 

 

Question No. 12: 
Would USAID consider providing a plug figure for grants under contract? 
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Response No. 12: 
Please see Response No. 10. 
 
Question No. 13: 
Will USAID please provide an updated FSN scale?  
 
Response No. 13: 

USAID/Jordan Local Compensation Plan Salary Schedule is attached to this Amendment as 
Attachment 2. 
 
Question No. 14: 
Can USAID please provide a copy of the Mission’s most recent Local Compensation Plan? 

 
Response No. 14: 

See Response No. 13. 
 
Question No. 15: 
P. 13 notes that the implementer will design a “yearly perception survey of judiciary 
performance;” can USAID confirm that the costs of conducting the survey will be paid for out of 
project funds and if so provide a plug figure for this activity?  

 

Response No. 15: 

USAID confirms that the costs for conducting the survey will be paid out of the project funds. 
USAID will not provide a plug figure for this activity. 

 

Question No. 16: 
P. 22 notes that a “mid-term program assessment may be conducted;” can USAID confirm that 
bidders should not budget for such mid-term assessment? 

 

Response No. 16: 

Mid-term program assessment will be conducted directly by USAID; therefore, offerors are not 
to include associated costs for the mid-term assessment in the budget. 

 

Question No. 17: 
Can USAID define what it means by a “milestone of engagement” (p. 60)? 

 

Response No. 17: 

“Milestone of engagement” refers to the time during which the offeror intends to engage 
and/or extend assistance to various stakeholders over the life of the project. 
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Question No. 18: 
The second bullet point under Illustrative Activities on page 17, states: “Target: training 
programs reaching up to 100 official staff each year.” Are these trainings for government 
officials or as described in the ACC Action Plan 1.3 “for sectors vulnerable to corruption”? 

 

Response No. 18: 

Support of the ACC Action Plan 1.3 is an illustrative activity.  The target under this bullet 
extends beyond this activity.  Official staff shall include judges, public prosecutors, Government 
staff in relevant ministries and independent official institutions.  Number of trained official staff 
if proposed under sub-result 1.1 must be counted as well towards this target.    

 
Question No. 19: 
Can USAID please confirm that as the options will not be included in the evaluation, budgets for 
the four options are not required? Can USAID further clarify how these options relate to the 
Windows of Opportunity budgeted amount of $2,500,000 as described on p. 20 – are these 
completely separate activities? 

 

Response No. 19: 

Although the options will not be included in the evaluation, offerors shall include the $4 million  
plug-figure as set forth in section B.4 in their budget. As per M.1 52.217-3 EVALUATION 
EXCLUSIVE OF OPTIONS (APRIL 1984), the options will be evaluated separately with the 
successful offeror during the implementation of the program, if exercised.  There is no relation 
between the four options and the windows of opportunity. 

 

Question No. 20: 
Can USAID provide a plug figure for the material support envisioned under Sub-Result 1.2? 

 

Response No. 20: 

This is an illustrative activity.  USAID will not provide a plug figure for the material support 
under Sub-result 1.2. 

 
Question No. 21: 
Sub-Result 2.2 states that “other activities will include the funding of pilot projects and studies 
to determine the effectiveness of reform activities”. Will these pilot projects be funded through 
grants or provided through technical assistance? 
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Response No. 21: 

The pilot projects could be funded through grants or directly through technical assistance.  

 

Question No. 22: 
Can USAID please confirm that proposals may be submitted as compiled Adobe Acrobat 
documents? 

 

Response No. 22: 

The offeror must submit its technical proposal (excluding annexes) in Word but may in addition 
provide its technical proposal (including annexes) in PDF format. 
 

Question No. 23: 
Would USAID please confirm that proposals are to be only submitted electronically? 
 
Response No. 23: 

This is to confirm that proposals are required to be only submitted electronically. 

 

Question No. 24: 
Would USAID please confirm that biographies for long-term and short-term technical advisors, 
as required by page 63 of the RFTOP, should be in an annex and are therefore excluded from 
the page limit? 
 
Response No. 24: 
Confirmed. 
 
Question No. 25: 
Should the biographies for each long-term and short-term technical advisor required by page 
63 of the RFTOP be provided on separate pages? Can multiple biographies be provided on a 
single page if space permits? 
 
Response No. 25: 
Yes, multiple biographies can be included in one page if space permits.  See also Response No. 
24. 
 
Question No. 26: 
In section C of the RFTOP, it is clear that USAID intends for the contractor to issue grants under 
contract; however, can USAID please confirm that contractors will have the authority to 
implement grants under contract per ADS 302.3.5.6 and ADS 302.3.4.13 and that the 
authorizing language will be included in the final contract? 
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Response No. 26: 
Confirmed. 
 
Question No. 27: 
Section B.1 notes that “the prospective Task Order will be for a period of five years with an 
estimated amount of $34 million, and 4 more options valued at $4 million each for a total 
amount of $16 million exercisable any time during the Task Order’s period of performance if 
and when political openings and opportunity arise.” In Section C on page 20, “the offeror is 
required to budget an amount of $500,000 per year for a total of $2,500,000” for the Windows 
of Opportunity component, under a line item called “Opportunities Module.” Could USAID 
please confirm that the $2,500,000 for the Windows of Opportunity component is not included 
in the $16 million for the four options to be exercised if and when political openings and 
opportunity arise? 
 
Response No. 27: 
The Windows of Opportunity component is different from the 4 options. 
 
Question No. 28: 
Would USAID consider prohibiting exclusive letters of commitment for personnel? The pool of 
expert personnel that meet USAID’s expectations for knowledge and experience, particularly 
those who are Cooperating Country Nationals and Third Country Nationals, is limited. Allowing 
exclusivity may restrict USAID’s access to the most appropriate personnel. 
 
Response No. 28:  
USAID neither prohibits nor requires exclusive letters of commitment for personnel. 
 
Question No. 29: 
Per guidance on pages 22-23 regarding Regulation 216 environmental documentation, the 
RFPTOP notes that “no activity…will be funded unless an environmental determination…has 
been reached for that activity.” Is an IEE available for review to ensure compliance with 
Regulation 216? 
 
 Response No. 29: 
USAID will not provide the IEE as part of the solicitation.  However, The IEE has a categorical 
exclusion. 
 
Question No. 30: 
Section L.8(c)(3)(f) on page 61 states that “the offeror shall provide a high quality results 
framework and Activity M&E Plan with targets disaggregated by gender…” Would USAID accept 
the results framework and Activity M&E Plan in an annex to the technical proposal? If so, would 
this annex be counted against the page limit? 
 
Response No. 30: 
See response No. 6. 
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Question No. 31: 
Section L.7(a)(3) on page 59 specifies the technical proposal “must be in MS Word.” Does this 
apply to the entire technical volume (front matter, technical approach, and annexes) or just the 
technical approach document? Adding whole-page graphics in MS Word, like the scanned 
letters of commitment requested on page 63, can create very large files, likely beyond the 5 
MB-per-file limit specified on page 59, and potentially affect the stability of the document 
(making it more likely to crash or display without proper formatting). For the sake of stability 
and size, can the offeror provide a PDF of the entire technical volume along with a copy of the 
technical approach document in MS Word? 
 
Response No. 31: 
Yes, the offeror must submit its technical proposal (excluding annexes) in Word but may in 
addition provide its technical proposal (including annexes) in PDF format. 
 
Question No. 32: 
Section L.7(a)(5) on page 59 states “The sections and annexes in the technical and cost 
proposals must be listed in the table of contents.” Does USAID desire a single, unified table of 
contents listing the sections and annexes of both volumes to be provided in both volumes, or 
can each volume contain a separate list of its sections and annexes (i.e., the technical volume’s 
table of contents only lists pages for the contents of the technical proposal, the cost volume 
only lists those of the cost)? 
 
Response No. 32: 
Each of the technical and cost volumes shall contain a separate list of its sections and annexes. 
 
Question No. 33: 
Section L.8(b) on page 60 provides a list of items not included in the page count of the technical 
proposal. A list of acronyms is not included in this list. Does USAID desire such a list? If 
provided, would such a list be counted against the page limit? 
  
Response No. 33: 
A list of acronyms may be provided and will not be subject to the page limit. 
 
Question No. 34: 
Could USAID please confirm that the Branding Implementation Plan and Marking Plan and all 
information related to it should appear in the cost volume and that no elements of that plan 
should appear in the technical volume? 
 
Response No. 34: 
Confirmed. 
 



American Embassy LOCAL COMPENSATION PLAN Annual Rate Stated in Local Currency

Amman, Jordan Units of Jordanian Dinars: $ 1.00  = JD 0.708

Salary Schedule

Effective Date:    Dec 29, 2013

Authorized per State 130468 dated Sept. 12, 2013

40-Hour Workweek

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 WGI Transp. All. Misc All.

FSN-13 28810 30251 31692 33133 34574 36015 37456 38897 40338 41779 43220 44661 46102 47543 1441 750 2460

FSN-12 24370 25589 26808 28027 29246 30465 31684 32903 34122 35341 36560 37779 38998 40217 1219 750 2460

FSN-11 20401 21421 22441 23461 24481 25501 26521 27541 28561 29581 30601 31621 32641 33661 1020 460 1310

FSN-10 17783 18672 19561 20450 21339 22228 23117 24006 24895 25784 26673 27562 28451 29340 889 460 1020

FSN-9 13874 14568 15262 15956 16650 17344 18038 18732 19426 20120 20814 21508 22202 22896 694 460 500

FSN-8 12380 12999 13618 14237 14856 15475 16094 16713 17332 17951 18570 19189 19808 20427 619 460 500

FSN-7 9998 10498 10998 11498 11998 12498 12998 13498 13998 14498 14998 15498 15998 16498 500 460 500

FSN-6 9035 9487 9939 10391 10843 11295 11747 12199 12651 13103 13555 14007 14459 14911 452 300 280

FSN-5 7853 8246 8639 9032 9425 9818 10211 10604 10997 11390 11783 12176 12569 12962 393 300 280

FSN-4 6447 6769 7091 7413 7735 8057 8379 8701 9023 9345 9667 9989 10311 10633 322 300 280

FSN-3 4965 5213 5461 5709 5957 6205 6453 6701 6949 7197 7445 7693 7941 8189 248 210 280

FSN-2 3907 4102 4297 4492 4687 4882 5077 5272 5467 5662 5857 6052 6247 6442 195 210 280

FSN-1 3548 3725 3902 4079 4256 4433 4610 4787 4964 5141 5318 5495 5672 5849 177 210 280

 

48-Hour Workweek

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 WGI Transp. All. Misc All.

FSN-12 29244 30707 32170 33633 35096 36559 38022 39485 40948 42411 43874 45337 46800 48263 1463 900 2460

FSN-11 24481 25705 26929 28153 29377 30601 31825 33049 34273 35497 36721 37945 39169 40393 1224 552 1310

FSN-10 21340 22407 23474 24541 25608 26675 27742 28809 29876 30943 32010 33077 34144 35211 1067 552 1020

FSN-9 16649 17482 18315 19148 19981 20814 21647 22480 23313 24146 24979 25812 26645 27478 833 552 500

FSN-8 14856 15599 16342 17085 17828 18571 19314 20057 20800 21543 22286 23029 23772 24515 743 552 500

FSN-7 11998 12598 13198 13798 14398 14998 15598 16198 16798 17398 17998 18598 19198 19798 600 552 500

FSN-6 10842 11384 11926 12468 13010 13552 14094 14636 15178 15720 16262 16804 17346 17888 542 360 280

FSN-5 9424 9896 10368 10840 11312 11784 12256 12728 13200 13672 14144 14616 15088 15560 472 360 280

FSN-4 7736 8122 8508 8894 9280 9666 10052 10438 10824 11210 11596 11982 12368 12754 386 360 280

FSN-3 5958 6256 6554 6852 7150 7448 7746 8044 8342 8640 8938 9236 9534 9832 298 252 280

FSN-2 4688 4922 5156 5390 5624 5858 6092 6326 6560 6794 7028 7262 7496 7730 234 252 280

FSN-1 4258 4470 4682 4894 5106 5318 5530 5742 5954 6166 6378 6590 6802 7014 212 252 280

Family Allowance for all new hires starting January 10, 2010  : 0

Family Allowance for current employees receiving the allowance at their current rates will be frozen as of January 9, 2010

Spouse: JD 228 Child: JD 110 Maximum Number of Children : 4

Bonuses: A 13th month bonus is paid in July and a 14th month bonus is paid in January of each year. Calculation: Basic rate plus Allowances

WGI: Within Grade Increase (Annual increments) Transp. All.: Transportation Allowance Misc All. : Miscellaneous Benefits Allowance

Attachment 2




